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INVESTMENT RISK MANAGEMENT AND PORTFOLIO ANALYTICS SOFTWARE 

RESPONSES TO POTENTIAL OFFERORS’ QUESTIONS 

December 31, 2020 

 
 

1. Does this relate to the previous RFIs issued for Portfolio Analytics or Private Equity Software 
issued in 2019 and 2020? 

Yes, this RFI relates to the Portfolio Analytics RFI previously issued in 2020; this RFI was 
cancelled.  This RFI is not related to the Private Equity Software RFI. 

2. We would request an exception to hard copy submission. 

As stated in the RFI, hard copies are not required at this time.  An electronic submission is 
required to the email address Investrisk@sra.state.md.us.  Please note that the pricing schedule 
is to be submitted electronically, but separate from the RFI response. 

3. Can you confirm whether or not you pay for a similar service currently or handle it yourself? 

The System currently utilizes systems for portions of the services outlined in the RFI; more 
specifically, the System has a current vendor for Risk and Portfolio Analytics.  The System also 
relies on customized analytics developed by Staff. 

4. Can MSRA please provide more specifics regarding the asset classes that will be required to be 
covered? Please include specificity on sub-asset class coverage required within Fixed Income 
and Derivatives specifically. 

Please refer to the Investment Policy Manual which can be found here: 
https://sra.maryland.gov/sites/main/files/file-attachments/investment_policy_manual_-
approved_by_board_of_trustees-september_22_2020.pdf?1601644024.  All sub-asset classes of 
the Policy Benchmark are described on page 11.  The System utilizes exchange-traded and over-
the-counter derivatives. 

5. Provide clarity of Question 5 in E. Technology and perhaps an example of a 3rd party 
environment. 

This question refers to availability of data on other 3rd party solutions. For eg., if there is a risk 
model included, would the System be available to use that data in other 3rd party software or 
internal software. Additionally, if access to alternative data is included, would the System be 
able to use such data in 3rd party or internal software. 

6.  [Potential Offeror] is currently operating in a virtual environment since our offices are closed 
due to the pandemic.  Please let us know if the requirement for a hard copy can be waived 
and we need only submit an electronic copy. 

See response for Question #2. 
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7. Please give a breakdown of the number of managers that falls into each portfolio asset class 
(Total growth equity, credit, real assets, etc), as well as the expected transparency for each 
manager (position detail vs report/exposure level detail). This is important for estimation of 
integration timeline as well as calculation of total fees.  

Please refer to the 2019 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report found here: 
https://sra.maryland.gov/sites/main/files/file-attachments/investment.pdf?1585750415.  
Managers are listed by asset class on pages 87-90.  In terms of transparency, the System tends 
to utilize separate accounts with public markets mandates and fund investments in alternative 
asset classes. 

8. Please provide more detail around what kinds of “economic, market, and security data” you 
would be looking for through the system. 

The System would like access to economic, market and security data to properly resource the 
evaluation of investments.  Economic data would include macro-economic data for example.  
Market data would include, for example, the US equity market.  An example of security data is 
equity stock and/or bond specific data. 

9. Could you provide examples of specific metrics that will be most useful? This is related to 
Potential Scope of Services, Section A, Software Program (“analyze various portfolio metrics” 
based on holdings and return analysis). 

Specific metrics may include holdings based attribution and exposures as well as return based 
style analytics. 

10. Could you provide more detail around what kinds of Portfolio Optimization analysis you 
would like to do? 

The System anticipates using Portfolio Optimization in following manner: 

1. Investment Strategy: A single portfolio optimization in both back test and live environments 
taking into account System’s security level return expectations, tracking error budget, 
turnover constraints, etc. 

2. Allocation Strategy: A multi-asset or a multi fund portfolio optimization taking into account 
System’s various asset classes’/funds’ expected returns, a risk model and other constraints 
such as transaction costs, turnover, etc.  
 

11. For complex (non-equity) manager portfolios or securities, does MSRA expect the provider to 
price or map these complex assets, or would at least some of the security meta data be 
provided by the manager? 

The System expects potential respondents to explain their capabilities in this regard.  For over-
the-counter derivatives, the System would provide relevant terms and conditions. 

12. Could you please provide a more detailed description of what the mortgage pre-payment 
model would include and how it would be used?  

Mortgage pre-payment models are used for security selection and risk management purposes. 
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13. How should factor risks for managers that do not provide position level detail be calculated? 
What about for non-liquid securities that are not publicly traded (so there is no market data 
available)? 

The System expects potential respondents to explain their capabilities in this regard. 

14. Could you provide an example of what "forward looking risk metrics" include? Is this on a 
security, fund, or portfolio level? All three? 

The System expects potential respondents to explain their capabilities in this regard. 

15. Generally speaking, does Risk Contribution include more than simply the exposure to a given 
security or category? Is this also inclusive of volatility/variance related metrics (mVaR, for 
example)? 

The System expects potential respondents to explain their capabilities in this regard. 

16. Our offices are currently closed due to COVID making printing and sending the hard copy 
response to the RFI very challenging.  Given this, can the RFI response be submitted solely 
electronically? 

Please see answer to question #2. 

17. With regard to the "hard copy" submission requirement mentioned in the "Timeline and 
Submission Details" table in the RFI, can you please confirm the number of hard copies that 
should be submitted and, if a hard copy of the fee proposal should also be submitted, the 
protocol for submitting a hard copy of the fee proposal? 

Please see answer to question #2. 

18. Might the Agency consider changing the requirement to electronic only, and not require hard 
copies? 

Please see answer to question #2. 

19. With the current situation with Corona-virus, will a physical submission still be necessary? 

Please see answer to question #2. 

20. As we prepare our RFI submission, we may seek to include information that would be deemed 
confidential and proprietary. To that end, would it be possible to execute a mutual NDA 
between our organizations protecting both sides equally from disclosure of any confidential 
information? 

This RFI, all responses, and resulting agreements are subject to Maryland’s Public Information 
Act, Md. Code Ann., General Provisions Article (“GP”) §4-101 et. seq.  In the response, Offerors 
must specifically identify those portions of their proposals, if any, which they deem to include 
confidential commercial or financial information or trade secrets under GP § 4-335, and must 
provide justification why such material should not, upon request, be disclosed by the State.  A 
blanket statement declaring that the entire response is confidential is not sufficient and will not 
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be honored.  Upon request for this information from a third party, the Agency will make an 
independent determination whether the information can be disclosed. 

21. Would an electronic copy only be acceptable for submission, or do you also require a hard 
copy? Most vendors have agreed to electronic submissions instead of going into the office due 
to COVID-19. 

Please see answer to question #2. 

22. What are the benchmarks that you use for each of the asset class that you are invested in? 

Please refer to the Investment Policy Manual which can be found here: 
https://sra.maryland.gov/sites/main/files/file-attachments/investment_policy_manual_-
approved_by_board_of_trustees-september_22_2020.pdf?1601644024.  The components of 
the Policy Benchmark are described on page 11. 

23. If certain functionalities outside of the core risk & analytics capabilities are currently not 
available within the solution and are work in progress, what are the required timelines for the 
delivery of such functionalities within the response? 

The System is looking for solutions currently available and will not be able to consider 
capabilities in development. 

24. Your allocation to Real Assets is 13% as of 2020-03-31, how is this 13% allocation broke down 
into private real estate, commodities, private equity and hedge funds? 

Please refer to the Investment Policy Manual which can be found here: 
https://sra.maryland.gov/sites/main/files/file-attachments/investment_policy_manual_-
approved_by_board_of_trustees-september_22_2020.pdf?1601644024.  All sub-asset classes of 
the Policy Benchmark are described on page 11. 

25. How many portfolios and also users are in scope for this RFI? 

For number of portfolios, please see the response to Question #7.  In terms of users, the 
Investments Division has a headcount of approximately 40 professionals including operations 
and accounting personnel, however, it is not likely each individual will require rights for the 
software solutions contemplated in this RFI. 

26. What is the percentage of OTC derivatives holdings in your portfolios? 

A limited number of fixed income and currency overlay accounts utilize OTC derivatives.  The 
number of line items is usually below 100. 

27. Regarding the Custom Index builder, what is the scope of asset classes required within this 
solution? 

Please refer to the Investment Policy Manual which can be found here:  

https://sra.maryland.gov/sites/main/files/file-attachments/investment_policy_manual_-
approved_by_board_of_trustees-september_22_2020.pdf?1601644024.  All sub-asset classes of 



5 
 

the Policy Benchmark are described on page 11 where examples of custom indices are shown.  
Individual accounts may use similar custom indices as well. 

 

28. Of the Allocation to the “Rate Sensitive” Asset Class what proportion is securitized debt? 

Please refer to the Investment Policy Manual which can be found here: 
https://sra.maryland.gov/sites/main/files/file-attachments/investment_policy_manual_-
approved_by_board_of_trustees-september_22_2020.pdf?1601644024.  All sub-asset classes of 
the Policy Benchmark are described on page 11. 

29. Can you please clarify if this RFI is due in both hard and email copy or just email copy? 

Please see answer to question #2. 

30. Can you please elaborate on section E. #3 for “License Requirements”?  

License requirements refers to requirements your firm imposes for a System employee to gain 
access. 

31. Can you please elaborate on section D. #28 for “Alternative Data”? Is this referring to third 
party content that can be integrated or alternative investments? 

The System would like to learn the extent of non-financial/alternative data that your system is 
equipped with and that the System would have access to (e.g., credit card payments data, 
satellite imagery for estimating agricultural yields, sentiment indicator built by scraping internet 
data, etc.). 

32. What are the existing systems for performance and risk that are being used today by MSRPS?  
Curious what you are looking to replace or sunset? 

The System currently utilizes several vendors for analytics including but not limited to 
Bloomberg, MSCI/Barra, FactSet, Burgiss, and State Street.  The System is not seeking to replace 
each one. 

33. Given recent mail delays due to COVID-19, will there be any flexibility with the delivery date 
of the physical copy? 

Please see answer to question #2. 

34. Relating to question D.20.a, does the System intend to consider ESG factors across all asset 
classes? Or will certain asset classes be prioritized first? 

The System considers ESG factors across asset classes but recognizes the reporting is more 
robust for public equities and bonds than alternative asset classes and will prioritize accordingly. 

35. Are you able to share more details on how you will apply the ESG research? Are you planning 
on using it to perform manager reviews? For internal reporting? 

The System considers ESG factors throughout its investment process and will utilize research to 
any practical extent including but not limited to manager reviews, internal reporting, and 
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reporting to external stakeholders, subject to terms and conditions outline in the agreement 
with the ESG research provider(s). 

36. If chosen, would our research be shared with your external managers? If so, can you provide 
any details on how you anticipate that working? 

The intent of such services will primarily be for internal purposes.  However, there could 
potentially be situations where such information is shared with the Board of Directors as well as 
external managers for discussions directly relating to our portfolio. 

37. For question G.3, if our firm is chosen, does the System allow Contractors to review and 
submit requested edits to the Terms & Conditions of the service contract? Do those proposed 
edits need to be included in the initial RFI response for January 15th? 

As stated in the RFI, the contract and its exhibits are attached for informational purposes only at 
this time and are not required to be completed and submitted in an Offeror’s response to the 
RFI. If an Offeror has material comments on the form of contract, the Offeror may include those 
comments in its response. Any Offeror will be will be initially selected pending successful 
contract negotiations. 


